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St. Theresa Church in Meade County, Kentucky, is located off Kentucky Highway 144, about 
20 miles west of Brandenburg, the county seat of Meade County. The site lies near the center of 
a rich agricultural plateau in a wide bend of the Ohio. The church complex is several miles from 
the crossing that marks the community of Rhodelia. The setting of the church itself consists of 
woods to the north and open fields on all other sides. The complex lies at a bend in the road. 
Within a hundred yards of it are a rectory, a large school-gymnasium, and other modern 
buildings, as well as ample parking lots. Such a support complex is, of course,necessary,
and the church itself remains dominant among them.

' -' -- --;.-'... . i...... .. ,., ,.

The "west" facade (which faces approximately north) is divided into three bays, suggesting 
the implied division of the interior. The bays are separated by brick buttresses, those at the 
corners turned diagonally outward. At about the level of the tops of the doors and windows there 
are two sets of double shoulders. The two center buttresses "die" into the wall surface just above 
the la£ge center window. The double middle door is not only larger, but seems to have a slightly 
more pointed arch than the single doors in the outer bays. The windows above have considerably 
more pointed openings, but the gable has a low slope, and contains a square louvered opening set 
on the diagonal. The outer buttresses and the gable peak are marked by the bases of pinnacles, 
which have apparently been replaced by crosses. One wonders whether this facade was not 
planned as temporary, allow ing for a central unexecuted tower like that of the Cathedral of the 
Assumption in Louisville (see National Register form approved at the State level on June 5, 1973) 
only on a more modest scale.

The sides of the rather boxlike nave are divided by similar buttresses between the tall, 
narrow lancet windows. Here, as on the west facade, there is a cornice of corbelled brick 
brackets. The foundations throughout are of stone.

The interior does not have the aisles usual in larger 19th-century Gothic Revival Catholic 
churches, but it seems to have undergone a major alteration, perhaps around the turn of the 
century. It appears that the roof was lowered, or at least flattened internally and laid on 
longitudinal beams. The present pressed tin ceiling slopes slightly downward from these beams 
to the outer walls. There are remnants of the linear ribbing characteristic of Keely's other 
work in Kentucky, however, on the east and west walls, partially submerged in the present 
ceiling. These spring from small corbels and have dainty bosses at the apices. It is impossible 
at present to tell whether these formed part of a more elaborate system of tracery or e^en vaults, 
and it is tempting to speculate on the possibility of pendants implying the division between nave 
and aisles. In any case, though, the surviving details indicate a much more superficial decorative 
treatment than Keely's other Kentucky works, lacking colonettes or piers applied to the walls.

The three altars at the east end and the niches on the walls flanking the main altar and east 
window within the shallow, flat recess of the chancel, are all of outstanding delicacy, with both 
tracery and exquisite open filigree work framing the niches for statues.

The truncated tower in the southeast corner of the church is of modern construction.
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St. Theresa Koman Catholic Church, located in the extreme northwestern part of Meade 
County near the village of Rhodelia, is the center of one of the oldest Catholic settlements in 
Kentucky. Although the parish was not formally established until 1818 when the first church was 
constructed, a few families were holding services in private residences as early as 1805. The 
present Gothic Revival Church, built between 1855-1861, is attributed to the architect William 
Keely, the designer of the Cathedral of the Assumption in Louisville, Kentucky.

The first group of Catholics to arrive in Kentucky came from Maryland and settled near 
Barcjstown, Nelson County in 1785. By 1787 the number of Catholics had grown so large that 
Bishop John Carrol of Baltimore appointed Reverend ME .Whelan^to be the first pastor of Kentucky. 
In April 1808, with the approval of Pope Pius VII, four American Sees (each the center of authority 
for a bishop) were created: Boston, New York, Philadelphia, and Bardstown/ Father Benedict 
Joseph Flaget was placed in charge of the See at Bardstown, becoming the first Catholic prelate 
in the Western section of the country. (See St. Joseph Cathedral and College Historic District, 
listed on the National Register June 3, 1976.)

According to Webb in his book The Centenary of Catholocity in Kentucky (p. 419), there were 
very few Catholics in what was to become Meade County prior to 1820. There were a few Catholic 
families, however, who settled in the 1790s on Flint Island, which is located in the Ohio River, 
two miles north of St. Theresa's. In 1805, Reverend Stephen T. Badin, a priest stationed at 
Bardstown, established several missions in Western Kentucky, including the families at Flint 
Island. During this time the Catholics in the area met at the house of William Elder, one of the 
first Catholic settlers. Services were held in this manner until the arrival of numerous other 
Catholic families from Nelson, Marion, Washington,and Scott Counties, necessitated construction 
of a place of worship.

In 1818 Elder donated land from hjis farm for the site of a church. Members of the congre­ 
gation cut timbers and built a log church. It was located in Chenault, Breckinridge County, a 
small town on the Ohio River, five miles southwest of Rhodelia. The church was built under the 
supervision of Reverend Robert A. Abell, a native of Marion County, who was the priest in charge 
of the missions in Western Kentucky during this time. The structure was dedicated to St. Theresa 
(1515-1582),a Carmelite nun.

(continued)
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Although Keeley worked on a number of large commissions in the state, St. 
Theresa is the only known parish church designed by him. Most of the other 
church structures attributed to Keeley, with the exception of the Cathedral of 
the Assumption, in Louisville, Jefferson County, are associated with religious 
orders. Because St. Theresa Church is of considerable size and is set upon a 
commanding rise in a remote area, it is very conspicuous^ which is appropriate! 
since it Is the focal point of the community's religious life, as well.
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By 1826 it became necessary for the congregation to abandon the first church and build a 
second log structure in a more central location. A few acres of land near the present site of the 
church near Rhodelia in Meade county was selected. A church was built and land was cleared 
around it for use as a cemetery. Five years later the congregation bought 259 acres surrounding 
the church to operate as a working farm in order to pay for church expenses. Shortly afterwards 
the congregation built a one-room log rectory and welcomed their first resident priest, Reverend 
Charles Ignatius Coomes (1805-1887), a native of Nelson County.

In 1839 Reverend Mr. Coomes had to relinguish his position because of illness and St. 
Theresa became a mission once again, until 1846 when Reverend Joseph Adams was assigned 
to the parish. Under Reverend Mr. Adams'guidance the first Catholic school in the parish was 
established. Unfortunately the school was short lived, but a more successful academy was 
opened in 1867 and remains in operation as a day school at the present time.

Reverend Patrick McNicholas acted as pastor of the parish from 1850-1870, and it was 
under his supervision that a new brick church was<built and the school reopened. By 1854 the 
continued growth of the congregation made it necessary to construct a larger church. Construe^ 
tion on the present Gothic Revival Church began in 1855 and was completed in 1861. William 
Keely, the designer of the Cathedral of the Assumption in Louisville, is believed to have been 
hired as architect, and the labor was volunteered by the members of the church.

Rock for the foundation was hauled from a nearby quarry and bricks were made near the 
site of the church. John B. Manning, a local skilled carpenter, did the woodwork, and George 
Egart, a cabinet maker, built the three front alters and did the finishing work. Egart had been 
working on the construction of the Abby Church of Gethsemani in Nelson County, when he was 
asked by Keely, the architect, to assist in the completion of St. Theresa. After the church was 
finished Egart and his family settled in Rhodelia and became members of the parish.

The congregation began using the new church in 1857 before it was completed. During the 
summer, a man took his life by hanging himself from the rafters of the log church,and because 
of this desecration of the structure, services were no longer held there. The church fell 
into decay and was eventually torn down. A cross marks the site of the church which is located 
a few hundred yards west of the present structure.

Many retreats and missions have been held at St. Theresa over the years, which have 
renewed the faith of the congregation and increased the number, of the members of the parish.

(continued)
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In 1937 Pope Pius XI elevated the Diocese of Louisville to an archdiocese and established the 
Diocese ofOwensboro. The line between the newly erected diocese and the archdiocese runs 
between Breckinridge and Meade Counties, dividing the St. Theresa parish in two.

In 1950 a new school building was erected to replace the large frame structure built in 
1867 for the academy. The church and school continue to thrive as an important part of the 
religious and social community.

As mentioned before, St. Theresa is supposed to be another work by the prolific Roman 
Catholic architect, William Keely, whose works in Kentucky in the 1850s are gradually being 
recognized and gaining for him an artistic identity. There are conflicting accounts of Keely's 
background, biography, dates, and even name, and little documentation for these attributions. 
But it seems likely that eventually some definite information will emerge to form a context into 
which these varied Kentucky works can be placed. St. Theresa has been considerably altered 
and few traits . , of Keely ! s , - style survive, but it does seem to represent him working 
on a fairly modest commission, if of large scale.
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St. Theresa Church is the only known work of Keeley in the state that is a simple 
parish church, rather than church structure which is part of a complex associated 
with a religious order.

Although Keeley worked on a number of large commissions in the state, St. Theresa, 
is the only known parrish church designed by him. The other church structures 
attributed to Keeley, such as St. Rose Priory, Washington County, and Gethsemani 
Abbey, Nelson County, are associated with religious orders. Because St. 
Theresa Church is of considerable size and is set upon a commanding rise, it is 
very conspicuous. The size of the church and its location combine to form a 
most impressive structure.


